
Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth 
Leol 

 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Iau, 19 Gorffennaf 2012  

 

Amser: 
09:10 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Polisi: Marc Wyn Jones 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8120 / 029 2089 8120 
pwyllgor.CCLll@cymru.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

09.10 - 09.20 - Cyfarfod preifat cyn y cyfarfod 

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon (09.20)  

2. Ymchwiliad i bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru ar yr amgylchedd 
hanesyddol - sesiwn dystiolaeth (09.20 - 10.00) (Tudalennau 1 - 6)  
Yr Ymddiriedolaeth Genedlaethol  
CELG(4)-19-12 – Papur 1 
 
Dr Emma Plunkett-Dillon, Pennaeth Cadwraeth Cymru  

Toriad (10.00 - 10.10) 

3. Ymchwiliad i bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru ar yr amgylchedd 
hanesyddol - sesiwn dystiolaeth (cynhadledd fideo) (10.10 - 10.50) 
(Tudalennau 7 - 14)  
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy  
CELG(4)-19-12 – Papur 2 
 
Peter Jones-Hughes, Prif Swyddog Cadwraeth  

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



Toriad (10.50 - 11.00) 

4. Ymchwiliad i bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru ar yr amgylchedd 
hanesyddol - sesiwn dystiolaeth (11.00 - 11.40) (Tudalennau 15 - 18)  
Llywodraeth Cymru 
CELG(4)-19-12 – Papur 3 
 
Edwina Hart AC, y Gweinidog Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth 
Steve Webb, Cyfarwyddwr Datblygu 
Lucy O'Donnell, Cyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol, Ymgysylltu â'r Cyhoedd a Llywodraethu, 
Cadw  

5. Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol: (11.40)   
Eitem 6 a 7  

6. Ystyried y materion allweddol - Ymchwiliad i Uwch Gynghrair 
Pêl-droed Cymru (11.40 - 12.20) (Tudalennau 19 - 40) 

7. Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor - Cytuno ar gylch gorchwyl 
ymchwiliad (12.20 - 12.30) (Tudalennau 41 - 46) 

8. Papurau i'w nodi   

 
CELG(4)-19-12 - Papur 5 - Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan Ombwdsmon 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru  (Tudalennau 47 - 48) 
 



 

 

 National Assembly for Wales: 

Communities Equality and Local 

Government Committee 

 

Inquiry into the Welsh Government's  

historic environment policy 
  

Evidence from National Trust 

29 June 2012 

 
 
1. Introduction 

 

The National Trust welcomes the opportunity to contribute evidence to the Inquiry into 

the Welsh Government's historic environment policy. 

 
Our historic sites in our cities, towns and villages, the historic features in the 
countryside, and the wider historic landscapes are intrinsic to the cultural life of 
people in Wales and are a major attractor of visitors to Wales: 

>77% of visitors to Cadw sites are from outside of Wales 

>15% from overseas 

 

The National Trust is a charity which makes a significant contribution to the 

economic, social and environmental life of Wales: 

 
� it is Europe’s largest conservation charity caring for special places in Wales, Northern 

Ireland and England - for everyone to enjoy 
 
� it looks after  the natural and historic resources upon which so much of the Welsh 

tourism industry depends. It cares for, and welcomes everyone to enjoy, 18 of Wales’ 
finest houses, castles, gardens and industrial sites, one fifth of the coastline of Wales 
and 50,000 hectares of land much of it in Snowdonia and the Brecon Beacons, with 
240 tenanted farms  

 
� it is the largest social enterprise in Wales; 

 
� it is supported by over 112,000 members in Wales and by 4 million overall; 

 
� it is the largest tourism business in Wales: welcoming a million visitors to its 

attractions, shops, holiday cottages, restaurants and tea rooms; 

 
� over 4 million people enjoy free access to the Welsh coast and countryside managed 

by the National Trust; 

 
� it is the biggest non-government provider of educational visits in Wales: 50,000 

school pupils and students visit each year; 

 
� it is a major employer in often remote rural areas with nearly 300 permanent staff and 

many more seasonal staff;  

 

Eitem 2

Tudalen 1



 

 

 

 

2 

 

� it attracts over 5,400 volunteers who donate 250,000 volunteer hours per year; 

 
� it is not dependent on Government funding 

 
 
2. Responding to the Inquiry’s questions: 
 

2.1 How appropriate and successful are the current systems employed by the 

 Welsh Government for protecting and managing the historic environment in 

 Wales? 

 

• The current systems are successful for protecting and managing the designated parts 
of the historic environment i.e. the aspects deemed to be worthy of statutory 
protection because of historic, archaeological or architectural merit.  

• It can be argued that all the landscapes of Wales, rural and urban are significant to a 
greater or lesser degree.  Have we got the appropriate measures to make sure that 
these areas are protected?   

• We have no means of taking care of special places that are valued for intangible 
reasons.  

 
2.2  How well do the Welsh Government’s policies promote the historic 

environments in Wales (for instance, in terms of interpretation, accessibility, 
attracting new audiences and tourism)? 

 

• This has improved enormously over the last few years with a range of passionate 
Ministerial Statements issued providing clarity on the Welsh Government’s policies 
and aims. These have helped to increase the profile of the historic environment in 
policy circles..But do the positive messages reach the public, or do they still have 
negative impressions, for example, about perceived delays in getting planning 
permission on Listed Buildings? 

• Cadw’s ‘Conservation Principles’ have been widely welcomed by the sector.  

• Cadw has a list of ‘Priorities 2011-2016’ and we engage with that through the  
Minister’s Historic Environment Group (HEG).  However, we recommend it’s time to 
review the effectiveness of HEG as a means of promoting the historic environment.   

• Interpretation tends to focus on sites in Cadw’s guardianship  and those open to the 
public. For instance the registered Historic Landscapes have been little publicised.  

• Within these limits, we note that work to attract new audiences to the sites in Cadw’s 
guardianship has been good – for instance work with the Arts Council and the many 
and varied public events at the Castles in Caernarfon, Conwy and Caerphilly. 

• The pan-Wales interpretation strategy and plan has been completed but a rather 
overly complex process may be hampering its delivery.   

 
2.3 How well do the policies for the HE tie in with wider WG policy objectives? 
 

• The emerging Natural Resources Body 

The National Trust is concerned that there is little recognition of the continuum from 

natural environment to historic environment to cultural environment. We recommend 

that the definition of ‘the environment’ for, and by, the new body is a broad one which 

Tudalen 2



 

 

 

 

3 

 

recognises this continuum. Very little of Wales’ environment is ‘natural’ as most of it 

has been influenced by people.  We feel that this holistic view of our environment 

needs to be ingrained in the way the single body views our environment and carries 

out its duties and a key way to ensure this will be to provide training for staff which 

enables them to recognise and appreciate the interdependencies of our natural, 

historic and cultural environment.  

 

• ‘Sustaining a Living Wales’ Green Paper 

The Green Paper is weak in recognising this continuum.  It does identify ‘culture’ as a 

key service group noting how local places, landscapes and seascapes are essential 

ecosystem services, but does not inspire confidence that there will be good 

integrations between the historic and natural environments in terms of opportunities 

and needs.  
 

• Regeneration 

 The Welsh Government’s Centre for Regeneration Excellence in Wales (CREW) has 
 a remit to promote excellence in regeneration and to establish a more integrated 
 regeneration practice across Wales. One of their four key areas of activity is rigorous 
 research. They are developing a ‘Historical Characterisation Toolkit’ with Cadw and the 
 Design Commission for Wales. 
 

• The Sustainable Development Bill (current consultation) 

In the consultation document there is no mention of organisations representing the 

historic environment such as Cadw or the Royal Commission as ‘an organisation 

making clear contribution to people’s economic, social and environmental wellbeing’ 

although the National Library, the Arts Council and the National Museums of Wales 

are listed.  

 

• Woodlands for Wales (Jan 2011) 

This Welsh Government policy document acknowledged that: ‘Woodlands and trees 

make a positive contribution to the special landscape character of Wales and to sites of 

heritage and cultural importance’.  Within this document there is a very good 

understanding of the value of landscape and the way the history of Wales is reflected 

within it. For examples it states: ‘In managing existing woodlands and trees, the value of  

archaeology within the woodland is respected, as well as the archaeology of the woodland; in 

creating new woodland, existing heritage sites are protected from damage and the integrity of 

historic landscapes is preserved.’ 

 

• Glastir:  
Disappointingly, even though Glastir is one of the drivers designed to feed into the 
above woodland strategy, and farmers are the custodians of our historic landscapes, 
there is an absence of meaningful provision for the historic environment in Glastir.   
The issues for the historic landscape are not touched upon within this scheme. The 
outcomes desired from this scheme are: combating climate change, improving water 
management, maintaining and enhancing biodiversity.   

 

• In the linked document ‘Why Plant Trees on my Farm?’ there is no mention of 
heritage or historic landscapes. 

Tudalen 3



 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

• Planning Policy Wales (Feb 2011) 

A positive example of integration of the historic environment into other Welsh 

Government policies is Planning Policy Wales. This is designed to help local 

authorities develop Local Development Plans, and has a chapter on conserving the 

historic environment. In this the Welsh Government’s objectives are to: 
>preserve or enhance the historic environment, recognising its contribution to economic 
vitality and culture, civic pride and the quality of life, and its importance as a resource for 
future generations 

and specifically to:  

>protect archaeological remains, which are a finite and non-renewable resource, part of the 
historical and cultural identity of Wales, and valuable both for their own sake and for their role 
in education, leisure and the economy, particularly tourism;  

>ensure that the character of historic buildings is safeguarded from alterations, extensions or 
demolition that would compromise a building’s special architectural and historic interest  

>ensure that conservation areas are protected or enhanced, while at the same time 

remaining alive and prosperous, avoiding unnecessarily detailed controls over businesses 

and householders.’ 

It identifies the important role of Cadw, the Royal Commission and the Archaeological 

Trusts in recording and protecting sites. It also specifically mentions the importance 

of the setting on several occasions: ‘Effect on historic landscape, park or garden and 

settings as a material consideration’  

 

• A White Paper for Better Lives and Communities (current) 

An example of the lack of integrations is the current Housing White Paper is squarely 

aimed at solving the housing problem, but nowhere, other than in the Minister’s title, 

in the entire 82 pages are ‘heritage’, ‘historic’ or ‘conservation areas’ mentioned.  

While fully recognising the importance of solving the shortage of suitable housing the 

White Paper appears to only see the number and condition of houses as the problem 

and does not look at the setting, the need to integrate new homes into communities 

and the need to look at the historic uses of areas. 
 

2.3 What would be the advantages and disadvantages of merging the functions of 
 RCAHM with functions of other organisations, including Cadw?  

 

• Understanding the historic environment is fundamental to effective management 
of Wales’ heritage assets and so we need to make sure that this service continues 
to be provided, irrespective of the organisational the structure.  The Royal 
Commission has done some exemplary work over the years adding greatly to our 
understanding of the historic environment. It has also led the way in publicly 
communicating the exceptional quality of the Welsh Historic Environment through 
Coflein which provides  access to a range of records via the web and also the 
successful series of television  programmes: ‘Hidden Histories’.   

• From a National Trust perspective our concern would be the risk of loss of 
expertise currently available within RCAHM. We would ask that this expertise is 
maintained for Wales irrespective of where it is housed.  

Tudalen 4



 

 

 

 

5 

 

• We value the independence of the Royal Commission form the political institution 
of Welsh Government. The risks oflosing this independence need to be 
considered.  

• The main advantage would be budget savings but we would ask that this is 
properly assessed, both the short and long term consequences.  

 
2.5 What role do local authorities and third sector organisations play in 
 implementing the WG’s HE policy and what support do they receive in this 
 respect 

• The National Trust is a charity which is independent of government for its core 
funding. However, we apply for grants to Cadw, the Heritage Lottery Fund and others 
for support for special projects and initiatives at our historic properties. 

• We work in partnership with a wide range of Third Sector and Government partners 
to deliver joint projects e.g. with Cadw, Visit Wales, CCW, CPRW, the Archaeological 
Trusts. Please see the two case studies below. 

• The third sector organisations in Wales which relate to the historic environment are 
not organised into a formal network like Heritage Link in England. There are a few 
Wales wide bodies like ourselves, a few strong regional bodies such as the 
Archaeological Trusts, but in the main the sector comprises very local groups and 
historical societies. 

 
3. Conclusion 

Therefore National Trust welcomes the Welsh Government’s positive efforts with 
historic environment policy.  But we feel the potential for the historic environment to 
deliver across the Government’s priorities such as regeneration, learning, social  
inclusion and Glastir has yet to be fully realised.  We also feel there is much more 
scope to harness the public’s interest in their history and historic environments and 
National Trust is well placed to work with Welsh Government to deliver wider public 
engagement. 

 
 

Case Study 1 – Partnership working 
 
On behalf of the Historic Environment Group: a co-operating group of stakeholders including 
Cadw, Forestry Commission, Heritage Lottery Fund, Royal Commission, National Trust, 
Countryside Council for Wales have commissioned research into "Assessing and 
addressing the potential impacts of climate change on the historic environment in 
Wales".  From this work the group has developed and is reporting on a strategic approach 
for both assessing and addressing the potential impact of climate change on the historic 
environment in Wales. The focus of the research is the adaptive response to the 
consequences of climate change.  
 

 

Case Study 2 – joint work to promote the value the historic environment of Wales 
(Please see the summary leaflet provided to the Committee.) 

 

Research published in September 2010 shows the historic environment makes a significant 

contribution to the Welsh economy.  It is estimated to support 30,000 full time equivalent 

(FTE) jobs, to contribute approximately £840 million to Wales' gross value added (GVA) and 

to contribute some £1.8 billion in respect of output. 

Tudalen 5



 

 

 

 

6 

 

 

The wider importance of the historic environment has been evaluated through case studies 

which show that the public value of the Welsh historic environment is considerable. It 

supports regeneration through acting as a catalyst for further investment which encourages 

local pride. The environment benefits by the conservation of landscapes and habitat and 

through volunteering and training opportunities local communities get involved in the 

conservation and promotion of the historic environment and are equipped with skills for 

work. Access and learning is also a priority which enables people of all ages to learn about 

their history and culture and supports the national curriculum  

 
The research “Valuing the Welsh Historic Environment” by, ECOTEC Research and 
Consulting Ltd, shows that, in addition to the direct economic benefits provided by important 
historic assets, there are significant indirect impacts in supporting wider economic, social 
and environment priorities, for example as a catalyst to investment and improving skills that 
enable more people to get work.  Much of the share of the economic impacts relates to 
tourism expenditure attributable to the historic environment as many visitors are attracted to 
Wales because of its wealth of heritage attractions. 

 

The report concludes that the Welsh historic environment is a valuable asset which must be 

actively cared for and promoted. It also stresses that once these assets have been lost or 

forgotten they can rarely be recovered. 

 

The National Trust chaired the Valuing the Environment steering group for the study in 

partnership with Cadw, Visit Wales, CCW , HLF and the three National Park Authorities. 
 

 
 

------------------------------------- 
 
 

Evidence presented by: Dr Emma Plunkett-Dillon, Wales Head of Conservation 

Organisation: Ymddiriedolaeth Genedlaethol / National Trust 

Contact: Dr Ruth Williams 

Email: ruthdr.williams@nationaltrust.org.uk 

Telephone:   07810 156794 

Address:   Wales Consultancy Office, Inner Courtyard, Dinefwr Park, 
Lladneilo SA19 6RT 

 
 

Tudalen 6



PETER JONES-HUGHES – BSc Hons; Post grad Dip Blg Cons (RICS); MRTPI;           
MIHBC 
 
EVIDENCE TO COMMUNITIES, EQUALITY AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, 
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY FOR WALES 
 
Evidence for the Inquiry into Welsh Government’s Historic Environment Policy 
 
 

Introduction 

I am a manager of a local authority conservation section that also includes 
landscape, tree and regeneration functions (total 5 FTEs).  I have worked for 
Conwy County Borough Council since 2009 to the present day.  I was 
previously the Head of Conservation and Environment at Flintshire County 
Council (1996 to 2009).   
 
I have been working for a number of council planning/ conservation teams in 
England, including Chester City Council and in Wales since starting my career 
in planning in 1978.  I have been involved in the North Wales Conservation 
Officers Group since its inception and have worked with groups examining 
options for specialist service collaboration since 2008. 
 
I have managed three townscape heritage initiatives for Holywell, Flint and 
Colwyn Bay and other property enhancement schemes.  A number of projects 
have been recognised with awards.       
 

Question 1: 

 

1. How appropriate and successful are the current systems employed by 
the Welsh Government for protecting and managing the historic 
environment in Wales? 

 
 
Answer: 
 

The pressure for inappropriate change and for the loss of historic assets and 
their fabric and authentic character has steadily increased since the 1960/ 
70’s.  For instance the surge in the manufacture and installation of PVCu 
products was not envisaged when conservation area legislation was 
introduced in the early 1970’s. 
 
The question addresses the fundamental issues about conservation at the 
beginning of the 21st century.  Are the current systems appropriate?  Many 
people believe that now is the time to change the approach to conservation in 
Wales.  There are calls amongst many owners to adopt a more flexible and 
less preservationist style.  These arguments are often supported by calls to 
conserve energy and to adopt measures that will tackle climate change.  I 
have always thought that consideration of options of least impact, facilitating 
change where possible and the adoption of a constructive approach to 
proposals is the best way to conduct ‘conservation’.  However there is a 
central tenet to conservation in my opinion and that is that there are occasions 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 7



when preservation is the imperative and so saying ‘no’ to change in these 
cases is justified.  When the authenticity and specialness of our historic 
assets is threatened, this is often when protection measures are most 
justified.  I often hear terms “well it’s already been spoilt by ;..” or “you 
allowed it (or didn’t do anything about that;;”)” and so further removal or 
loss of this and that is now ok”.   A line must often be established in 
conservation and the failure to ‘draw the line’ can often lead to complications, 
accumulative damage and more work!         
 
Conservation areas such as Llandudno and Conwy and other designated 
areas that cover our market town etc, are also our great income generators.  
The economic argument to preserve the specialness of places has never 
been stronger. 
 
However although many owners and stakeholders who ‘sign up’ to 
conservation by visiting these places for holidays etc they also have a 
different view when it comes to the control of their own properties.  Without 
protection of comparatively rare historic assets there would be a rapid erosion 
of the quality and value of these items and areas.  The approach of the 
Republic of Ireland to the protection of its historic environment is a lesson for 
us in Wales.  It is true that special things are often unappreciated (and 
undervalued in monetary terms) until there are far fewer of them.  Then it may 
be too late to reverse the trend. 
 
I would say that current protection measures are needed now more than ever.  
There is a line for preservation beyond which conservation becomes an ever 
more difficult thing to sustain and it also gets ever more difficult to manage.  
Protection and management are essentially the same thing.  Preservation 
needs management, as does change.  Protection measures for listed 
buildings remain on the whole robust and there is a need for a system where 
change can be prevented if aspects of significance are threatened. 
 
Statutory protective measures for conservation areas are not so robust 
however and the need to positively apply for additional controls is considered 
to be a weakness.  There have been relatively few Article 4 Directions issued 
for conservation areas in Conwy County and the lack of these in respect of 
historic residential areas has resulted in significant loss of character.  Once an 
area is eroded in this way, by minor inappropriate alterations, it is a very 
difficult task to regain authenticity and special character. 
 
The compensation regime for Article 4 Directions has recently been changed 
to coincide with the English regulations.  This is welcomed, but the vast 
majority of local authorities are very nervous about issuing Article 4 Directions 
and this increases their exposure to compensation.  Where conservation 
character has been eroded there is greater risk of compensation being paid 
as residents increasingly apply for modern replacements when they see 
neighbouring properties already with modern replacements that were installed 
prior to the making of the Direction. 
 

Tudalen 8



There needs to be a review of conservation area controls and the current 
statutory policy requirement to only preserve the character of designated 
areas.  The Civic Trust for Wales and others have long highlighted the decline 
in the quality and distinctiveness of our conservation areas.  The present test 
for development of merely needing to preserve existing character will make it 
harder for local authorities to regain the specialness of eroded designated 
areas.  There should be provision for enhancing areas if this is identified as an 
objective in for instance a specific conservation area management plan. 
 
Enforcement and statutory powers to achieve general repairs to listed 
buildings are commonly given low priority by local authorities.  Planning 
enforcement sections are managed separately and the legislation itself 
particularly needs to be review and strengthened.    
 
Controls over advertising within conservation areas are not fit for purpose.  
Circular 61/ 96 states that where authorities have pursued programmes to 
improve signage in partnership with local businesses and these have failed 
they may apply to make a Regulation 7 Direction.  To my knowledge no Local 
Planning Authorities have applied for such a Direction and many commercial 
conservation areas are plagued by signs that fail to take the special character 
and appearance of an historic area into account. 
 
The historic environment should ideally be treated in a holistic manner.  There 
is encouragement to survey and identify Buildings of Local Importance (BLI’s).  
Controls over alterations and partial or entire demolition of unlisted BLI’s that 
are located outside conservation areas are weak and a new Heritage 
Protection Bill should look to address this deficiency. 
 
Other parallel controls on ecclesiastical buildings are considered by many to 
be less rigorous than listed building consent controls exerted on non-church 
buildings.  I would agree with the views of the Victorian Society who refer to 
the lack of a review of the system of Ecclesiastical Exemption (EE) in Wales.  
A recent case for radically altering a grade II* listed church was considered by 
the Local Planning Authority and several other consultees as being 
inappropriate and damaging.  The case was referred to the chancellor of the 
church whose judgement in allowing the proposals bore few references to 
establish conservation principles. 
 
Protective controls are in many cases more straightforward to implement than 
exerting management measures.  This latter area is often described by Local 
Planning Authority conservation staff as being more problematic.  Because 
the limited numbers of local authority specialist conservation staff are in the 
main engaged in a high daily volume of reactive work, less time can be set 
aside for management.  Yet the latter is the true test of the effectiveness of 
our controls.  The greater appreciation and acceptance of historic area 
controls for instance is likely to make controls within designated areas more 
effective.  However, little progress can be made in the area of engagement 
and awareness raising because of current levels of specialist resources.  How 
many Welsh conservation areas have got up to date management plans?  
The answer is very very few.  The majority of designated areas that have 

Tudalen 9



management plans are those that were required as a condition of approval of 
a regeneration scheme such as the THI. 
 
The proposed Heritage Protection Bill of the previous government made it 
clear that such proposals as the creation of conservation plans and 
management plans for listed buildings/ monuments could not be introduced 
due to shortages of resources in Wales compared to England. 
 
It is my opinion therefore that it is the deficiencies in management of heritage 
assets that need to be addressed rather than contemplating radical 
modifications to legislation/ procedures. 
 
The following management prescriptions could improve the effectiveness of 
controls as well as creating a more accepting and sympathetic environment 
for conservation: - 
 

1. Conservation area management plans and local engagement. 
2. World Heritage Site management plans and the formulation of policies 

for considering distant viewpoints and buffer zones etc. 
3. Building at risk initiatives that include proactive measures to inform 

owners of the implications of listing and the importance of regular 
maintenance. 

4. Local community engagement in the identification of BLI’s and their 
ongoing monitoring and safeguarding and assistance in the 
appreciation of their local environment in holistic terms.   

 
 
 
Question 2 

2. How well do the Welsh Government’s policies promote the historic 
environment in Wales (for instance, in terms of interpretation of 
communities)? 

 
 
Answer: 

 
The fundamental requirement for the historic environment must, in the first 
place, be to preserve and where possible enhance the special interest of our 
heritage assets.  Without assets being authentic and in good condition 
policies for promotion would hardly be necessary and would struggle to 
succeed.  A degraded historic environment is neither a cultural nor an 
economic asset. 
 
The Welsh Government policies towards supporting sustainable development 
and tackling climate change have been impressive.  However there needs to 
be an equally strong vision from government on achieving clear heritage 
goals.  Cadw is widely perceived by local authority specialists as being under 
resourced and has in recent years prioritised their actions to ensure their own 
estate assets are safeguarded.  At a time of financial constraints this is 
understandable.  However we are in a period of increased pressure imposed 
on the historic environment with fewer funds to tackle damage and 

Tudalen 10



degradation to vulnerable assets. (e.g. Conwy has several large and 
important listed country houses that are currently vacant and at high risk) 
 
There is a need for Welsh Government to give a clear policy message that is 
accompanied by a vision of how important the historic environment matters in 
Wales.  A national audit of the health of the nation’s heritage assets would be 
a good start and would inform a much needed national action plan.  (say of 5-
10 year duration)  The plan should focus on the five areas identified by the 
IHBC in their evidence and should facilitate improved collaborative working 
together with a increasing the capacity and involvement of the third sector in 
the aspects mentioned in the question. 
 
The Built Heritage Forum has been one method that has brought dividends for 
mutual discussion on priority issues and the Forum is now providing more of a 
focus of integrating local authority and Cadw actions.  However in my opinion 
there is still a lack of national vision and co-ordination of action could be much 
improved.  There are compelling reasons to bring in these improvements 
however leadership and resource issues represent real drawbacks.  There is 
currently nowhere near the critical mass of resources available to bring these 
improvements into play. 
 
 
 
Question 3 

3. How well do the policies for the historic environment tie in with wider 
Welsh Government policy objectives (such as the regeneration of 
communities)? 

 
 
Answer: 

 
Again there is a strong message and steer from the Welsh Government in 
areas such as sustainable development etc.  This is to be admired however 
there is not such a strong message being spelled out for the historic 
environment.  Circular 61/96 is outdated in its guidance on many areas, not 
least in the guidance relating to historic assets and climate change issues.  
There is a perception that this means improvements for e.g. thermal 
upgrading and energy generation etc take priority.  The balance between the 
objectives of other Welsh government policies and initiatives has not clearly 
been set out.  This results in cases of significant anomaly and contention that 
must often be resolved at local level. 
 
The impacts of policies and initiatives, including major funded projects, do not 
often appear to have been considered beforehand in relation to fragile historic 
assets.  Furthermore the potentially damaging impacts of some 
initiatives/programmes such as ‘ARBED’ do not appear to have been scoped 
in relation to a more holistic architectural / heritage sensitivity. 
 
Regeneration policy at a national level could be greatly improved to target 
economic and condition issues connected with the Welsh historic 
environment.  The historic environment of Wales is predominantly of a 

Tudalen 11



vernacular type and well dispersed.  There are many conservation areas that 
are market towns and smaller rural settlements/villages with residential areas.   
These are excluded from strategic regeneration funding areas.  Cadw does 
not co-ordinate its funding schemes with local authorities and vice versa.  A 
pilot joint BAR initiative with Cadw in Conwy takes collaboration a little further 
but this could be greatly developed.   
 
It is considered important that, where an area of strategic regeneration 
funding is identified, such as in Colwyn Bay, funds are not diverted 
prematurely elsewhere.  This disrupts momentum and can negate the effects 
of previous investments. 
 
 
 
Question 4 

4. What would be the advantages and disadvantages of merging the 
functions of the Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historical 
Monuments of Wales with the functions of other organisations, 
including Cadw. 

 
 
Answer: 

 
There would be theoretical advantages to a merge of functions.  There are 
clear linkages and areas of common interest between RCAHMW and Cadw.  
However a merger of the two organisations raises concerns in practical terms.  
Cadw is undoubtedly increasingly under pressure to meet its obligations and 
wide ranging advisory demands. 
 
There is a concern that a merger would place additional pressure on the 
research function of the RCAHMW.  Nevertheless the promotional objectives 
of the two organisations clearly dovetail and if merging brings further 
opportunities to increase outputs this would be welcomed. 
 
There would also be a concern amongst mid/ north Wales authorities that a 
physical merger would make the RCAHMW even less accessible to them. 
 
Resources that are currently available to conservation organisations across 
the board are stretched.  Collaboration is seen as a potential option to 
increase productivity.  This view should be treated with caution in my opinion 
as specialist resources (those individuals with a high level of direct knowledge 
and experience of historic buildings and areas) are very limited in number. 
 
 
 
Question 5 

5. What role do local authorities and third sector organisations play in 
implementing the Welsh Government’s historic environment policy and 
what support do they receive in this respect? 

 
 

Tudalen 12



Answer: 

 
Local authorities are the pivotal conservation organisation in Wales in terms of 
local objectives and actions.  They play important statutory roles but also 
provide local stakeholders with information and advice about the historic 
environment.  Local conservation teams have a wide ranging list of activities 
and these often provide the only such specialist expertise within an area that 
is free of charge.  Stakeholders that are advised and supported include: 
 

1. Owners of historic properties. 
2. Businesses in conservation area etc. 
3. Interest groups and local Civic Societies. 
4. Politicians 
5. Experts and practitioners. 
6. The councils own needs as an owner etc of historic properties. 

 
There are no national service delivery guide lines on the nature and extent of 
local conservation services and each unitary authority applies its own 
priorities and levels of resources to service provision.  There are wide 
variations in staffing resources and the vision for local service delivery 
between different authorities.  In the main local teams struggle to tackle the 
more strategic outputs of local conservation which invariably benefit the 
management of historic assets.  I have mentioned some of these in answer to 
the first question. 
 
Collaboration could improve the vision, consistency of service delivery and 
quality of advice and could possibly tackle much needed management issues 
however the shortage of expertise is a real potential obstacle to achieving 
these improvements.  The north Wales officer collaboration report of 2009, the 
IHBC survey of conservation resources 2012 and the current work of the 
Simpson Compact are and will be useful references on the ability of existing 
resources to adapt to give better overall service. 
 
Compartmentalisation is still a key drawback to progress.  For instance the 
Simpson Compact will have two separate reports for planning and specialist 
conservation services. 
 
The conclusion on present arrangements is that local authorities are potential 
best placed to work on the local management of historic assets.  They have 
the ability and vision in many cases to provide a holistic service to the public 
and other agencies.  However the existing teams are small, under continuous 
pressure and are often lacking in strategic and even corporate support.  Vital 
areas such as galvanising community/ business engagement in local historic 
areas/ assets are beyond most teams at the moment.  The objective is further 
impeded by the relative limited capacity of the third sector in Wales.  Much 
work could be carried out by, Cadw, amenity bodies and local authorities to 
develop their roles, however there is no co-ordination, leadership over all 
sectors and resources to carry out effective management are currently 
virtually non-existent.  These exercises need to commit resources over longer 
periods and they require on-going local leadership and support in order to 

Tudalen 13



achieve self-sustaining conditions.  Local authority is currently incapable of 
providing this in the majority of cases/ areas. 
 
Collaboration may provide avenues for improvement however at the moment I 
have doubts as to whether there is adequate slack in the system to even 
begin to introduce and manage this type of initiative properly. 
 
Having said this collaboration and integration of diverse services and 
organisations must be the way forward.  Delegation of decision making to 
authorities must be the goal.  However this must preferably be implemented in 
a way that ensures consistent standards and sound principles and policies 
(and a minimum requirement of resources) are achieved for each team 
afforded delegation.  Collaboration can make this happen. 
 
The sourcing and obtaining of funds to increase capacity say for community 
initiatives focused on raising awareness, knowledge and commitment to the 
architectural and historic environment and other regeneration schemes is 
going to be vital to the better management of these assets.  Money spent in 
these areas will reduce the resources aimed at controlling and policing.  Who 
is best placed to apply and use these funds?  The third sector needs co-
ordination or direction otherwise a quite chaotic situation could develop that 
would be characterised by conflict, rivalry, duplication of work, wasteful 
investment on task of lesser priority.           

Tudalen 14



 1

Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol  
 
Dydd Iau 19 Gorffennaf 2012  
 
Polisi Amgylchedd Hanesyddol Llywodraeth Cymru 
 
 
1. Cyflwyniad 
 

1.1. Diben y papur hwn yw nodi tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig i’r Pwyllgor 
Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol ynghylch eu 
hymchwiliad i Bolisi Amgylchedd Hanesyddol Llywodraeth Cymru. 

 
 
2. Crynodeb 

 
2.1. Mae’r papur hwn yn amlinellu pwysigrwydd yr Amgylchedd 

Hanesyddol i dwristiaeth Cymru ac yn rhoi gwybodaeth ar 
weithgarwch gan fy swyddogion yn Croeso Cymru a’i bartneriaid i 
wneud y gorau o werth yr Amgylchedd Hanesyddol i economi 
ymwelwyr Cymru.  

 
 
3. Twristiaeth Cymru a’r Amgylchedd Hanesyddol  
 

3.1. Twristiaeth yw un o’n sectorau economaidd allweddol, sydd werth £4.7 
biliwn i economi Cymru bob blwyddyn; mae’r amgylchedd hanesyddol 
yn rhan bwysig o’r sector. 

 
3.2. Mae ymwelwyr yn chwilio am brofiadau unigryw, gwirioneddol sy’n eu 

galluogi i weld y Gymru go iawn. Mae ymchwil ymwelwyr yn dangos 
bod profiad Cymreig unigryw, gwirioneddol yn ffactor pwysig o ran 
boddhad taith. Mae’n diwylliant a’n treftadaeth yn rhan allweddol o 
apêl Cymru, gan wneud Cymru’n unigryw a rhoi rheswm dros ymweld. 

 
3.3. O ran yr amgylchedd hanesyddol, gall profiadau ymwelwyr fod yn rhai 

generig, h.y. pensaernïaeth, cymeriad trefi a phentrefi, ymdeimlad o le 
neu dirluniau, neu’n rhai penodol fel ymweliadau ag atyniadau 
treftadaeth, amgueddfeydd, mannau addoli, neu reilffyrdd treftadaeth.  

 
3.4. Mae ffigurau ymwelwyr yn cadarnhau bod ymweliadau ag atyniadau 

treftadaeth ymysg y gweithgareddau poblogaidd i ymwelwyr domestig 
ar ôl gweld golygfeydd/ymlacio. Mae ymweld â chestyll/safleoedd 
hanesyddol, canolfannau treftadaeth a dehongli a rheilffyrdd golygfaol 
oll yn gymharol fwy poblogaidd ar deithiau i Gymru na rhannau eraill 
o’r DU.    

 
3.5. Yn arolwg ymwelwyr 2011, roedd 38% o ymwelwyr domestig yn 

datgan bod mannau o ddiddordeb a safleoedd hanesyddol yn rheswm 
dros ymweld â Chymru, gyda mwy na thraean o ymwelwyr tramor yn 

Eitem 4

Tudalen 15



 2

nodi mai ymweld ag atyniadau a safleoedd hanesyddol oedd eu prif 
reswm dros ymweld â Chymru. Fodd bynnag, mae Cymru fel cyrchfan, 
a’i threftadaeth gref, yn gymharol llai enwog ymysg ymwelwyr 
rhyngwladol, gyda photensial cryf i hybu twf ymwelwyr pellach. 

 
3.6. Mae canfyddiadau ymwelwyr am Gymru yn gryf yn achos cestyll a 

threftadaeth ddiwydiannol, gan gynnwys rheilffyrdd, ond mae’n gerddi 
a’n hamgueddfeydd/orielau’n llai enwog. Ar y cyfan, mae Cymru’n 
dioddef o’r canfyddiad, er bod digonedd o harddwch naturiol yma, prin 
yw’r pethau eraill i’w gweld neu’u gwneud. 

 
3.7. Cestyll a phlastai sydd ar frig y rhestr o bethau y mae ymwelwyr 

tramor am eu gweld fwyaf pan fyddant yn dod i Brydain. Mewn arolwg 
VisitBritain, cafodd 10,000 o dwristiaid tramor restr o 18 o bethau y 
mae modd eu gwneud ym Mhrydain yn unig, a gofynnwyd iddynt 
ddewis y rhai roedden nhw am eu gwneud fwyaf. Y tri dewis mwyaf 
poblogaidd oedd: mynd ar daith o amgylch cestyll Cymru (34%), 
ymweld â Phalas Buckingham (32%) ac aros am noson mewn castell 
Albanaidd (29.1%). 

 
 
Gweithgarwch Croeso Cymru 
 
4. Gwaith trawsadrannol a gwaith partneriaeth 
 

4.1. Mae fy swyddogion yn gweithio drwy’r Bartneriaeth Twristiaeth 
Ddiwylliannol i gydlynu gwaith partneriaid sy’n ymwneud â datblygu 
twristiaeth, treftadaeth a diwylliant. Mae’r Bartneriaeth yn cynnwys 
cymysgedd o gyrff mewnol ac allanol a’i nod yw casglu syniadau ar 
gyfer gweithredu yn y dyfodol a datblygu prosiectau ar y cyd. 

 
4.2. Mae fy adran yn cydlynu grŵp trawsadrannol sy’n ceisio manteisio ar 

botensial dynodiad Safle Treftadaeth y Byd Pontcysyllte drwy 
hyrwyddo a datblygu arlwy diwylliannol ehangach yn y Gogledd-
ddwyrain.  

 
4.3. Mewn perthynas â phrosiectau’r cronfeydd Ewropeaidd, mae fy 

swyddogion yn cadeirio ac yn rheoli Grŵp Llywio Strategol yr 
Amgylchedd ar gyfer Twf, yn ogystal â grŵp monitro a gwerthuso 
strategol yr Amgylchedd ar gyfer Twf. Mae Cadw yn bartneriaid 
gweithredol yn y ddau grŵp drwy’r Prosiect Twristiaeth Treftadaeth. 

 
4.4. Yn ogystal, mae gan fy adran gynrychiolaeth yn Grŵp Amgylchedd 

Treftadaeth y Gweinidog Treftadaeth, gan gyfrannu at astudiaeth 
ymchwil i werth economaidd yr Amgylchedd Hanesyddol. Mae’r 
ymchwil yn amcangyfrif bod sector yr amgylchedd hanesyddol yn 
cefnogi dros 30,000 o swyddi cyfwerth ag amser llawn yng Nghymru 
ac yn cyfrannu tua £840 miliwn ar werth ychwanegol crynswth 
cenedlaethol Cymru, sy’n gyfwerth ag 1.9% o gyfanswm gwerth 
ychwanegol crynswth Cymru. 

Tudalen 16



 3

 
 
5. Marchnata 
 

5.1. Mae diwylliant a threftadaeth yn rhan annatod o arlwy Cymru i 
ymwelwyr, felly mae cynnyrch twristiaeth treftadaeth yn elfen gref o 
holl ymgyrchoedd marchnata twristiaeth Llywodraeth Cymru. 

 
5.2. Gan mai twristiaid treftadaeth achlysurol a damweiniol yw mwyafrif yr 

ymwelwyr â safleoedd treftadaeth, yn hytrach na mai diwylliant a/neu 
dreftadaeth yw prif ddiben eu taith, mae hyrwyddo’r atyniadau iddyn 
nhw yn y ffordd gywir yn hanfodol er mwyn eu cadw. Mae 
ymgyrchoedd marchnata yn rhoi rhesymau dros ymweld a’r pethau 
gorau i’w gwneud yn y gyrchfan, gan ganolbwyntio fwyfwy ar 
gyfryngau cymdeithasol a chysylltiadau cyhoeddus, yn ogystal â 
hysbysebu traddodiadol a dulliau marchnata uniongyrchol. 

 
 
6. Rheoli Cyrchfannau 
 

6.1. Mae fy adran yn annog datblygu a hyrwyddo cyrchfannau drwy raglen 
rheoli cyrchfannau sy’n cael ei chyflwyno ledled Cymru. Mae rheoli 
cyrchfannau yn sefydlu partneriaethau cyhoeddus/preifat effeithiol i 
nodi blaenoriaethau ar gyfer gwella profiad ymwelwyr mewn cyrchfan 
benodol. Mae datblygu asedau treftadaeth cyrchfannau wedi bod yn 
rhan o nifer o’r Cynlluniau Rheoli Cyrchfannau sydd wedi’u paratoi hyd 
yn hyn. Er enghraifft, bydd Sir Fynwy yn datblygu’r agweddau canlynol 
ar yr arlwy i ymwelwyr yn nhrefi a phentrefi mawr y sir:  

 

• cyfleusterau dehongli cestyll a chyfleusterau i ymwelwyr;  

• cyfleusterau dehongli eglwysi a mynwentydd a chyfleusterau i 
ymwelwyr;  

• amgueddfeydd;  

• safleoedd treftadaeth.  
 

6.2. Mae’r ffordd rydyn ni’n gwella’r profiad o rai o’n hatyniadau 
treftadaeth/trefi yn gyfle diddorol i sector yr amgylchedd hanesyddol. 
Mae lle i ddatblygu a gwella trefi treftadaeth sydd â màs critigol o 
atyniadau treftadaeth i wella’u hapêl cyffredinol i ymwelwyr. 

 
 
7. Buddsoddiad Cyfalaf 
 

7.1. Drwy’r Cynllun Cymorth Buddsoddi mewn Twristiaeth, gall fy adran 
gefnogi prosiectau i wella cyfleusterau mewn safleoedd ac atyniadau 
treftadaeth i wella apêl cyffredinol cyrchfannau i ymwelwyr. Mae’r 
prosiectau sydd wedi’u hariannu’n ddiweddar drwy’r cynllun hwn yn 
cynnwys: 

 

• Castell Caerdydd - £25,000 i adfer gwedd mynedfa’r castell  

Tudalen 17



 4

• Silver Mine Attractions Ltd, y Canolbarth - £50,000 i wella’r holl 
fwyngloddiau, arddangosfeydd a chyfleusterau.  

• Castell Ystumllwynarth - £238,000 i helpu i greu ‘atyniad treftadaeth 
warchodedig gyda mynediad llawn i’r cyhoedd’ (rhan o brosiect 
twristiaeth treftadaeth ehangach dan arweiniad Cadw)  

• Dyfrbont Pontcysyllte - £50,000 i ymestyn a gwella’r ganolfan 
ddehongli i ymwelwyr, ynghyd â gwaith seilwaith cysylltiedig ym 
Masn Trefor, i gefnogi Safle Treftadaeth Byd Dyfrbont a Chamlas 
Pontcysyllte. 

 
8. Dehongli 
 

8.1. Mae helpu ymwelwyr i ddeall neu ddehongli hanes lle yn allweddol i 
brofiad cyffredinol ymwelwyr, yn enwedig mewn atyniadau treftadaeth. 
Mae dulliau digidol yn cael eu defnyddio fwyfwy i ddod â safleoedd yn 
fyw. Mae elfennau symudol a rhyngweithiol yn helpu o ran dysgu, gan 
wella’r profiad cyffredinol ac ehangu’r apêl. Gall dehongli digidol 
(gwybodaeth symudol/realaeth uwch/teithiau hunan-dywys etc) fod yn 
ddull effeithiol iawn ochr yn ochr â dulliau ysgrifenedig mwy 
traddodiadol, dehongli person cyntaf ac ail-greu hanes. 

 
8.2. Mae fy adran yn cefnogi’r gwaith o ddatblygu dehongli digidol mewn 

safleoedd ac atyniadau treftadaeth drwy’r Prosiect Fframwaith Busnes 
Twristiaeth Ddigidol a ariennir gan Ewrop, er enghraifft gan ddefnyddio 
technoleg gemau fideo i wella profiad ymwelwyr mewn safleoedd 
treftadaeth ddiwylliannol a thwristiaeth allweddol. 

 
 
9. Cyfeiriad Twristiaeth Cymru yn y Dyfodol  
 

9.1. Mae’r Panel Sector Twristiaeth wrthi’n cynnal adolygiad o Strategaeth 
Dwristiaeth Llywodraeth Cymru. Caiff yr adolygiad ei lywio’n rhannol 
gan ymchwil defnyddwyr newydd a gomisiynwyd yn ddiweddar i 
ymchwilio i’r rhwystrau a’r cyfleoedd allweddol i dwristiaid y DU o ran 
ymweld â Chymru. Bydd y gwaith ymchwil hwn yn helpu i lywio’r ffordd 
rydyn ni’n hyrwyddo’n hamgylchedd hanesyddol ochr yn ochr â 
chynhyrchion twristiaeth eraill yn ein gweithgarwch twristiaeth yn y 
dyfodol. 

 
 
Edwina Hart, Gweinidog Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth.  
 

Tudalen 18



Eitem 6

Tudalen 19

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



Eitem 7

Tudalen 41

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



1 

 

Our  ref: PT/SMH Ask for: Peter Tyndall

Your ref: 01656 641150

Date: 6 July 2012

The Chair
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay
CARDIFF
CF99   1NA

Dear Chair

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee – 5 July 2012
Item 6 – Consideration of annual report by the Public Services Ombudsman for 
Wales 2011-12

Thank you for the opportunity to give evidence to the Committee on my Annual 
Report for the year 2011/12.  I welcomed being able to discuss the work of my office 
and I hope that Committee Members found this useful.

As you are aware, time was against us at the meeting and I, therefore, gave an 
undertaking to provide a written answer in respect of the question asked about the 
Advisory Panel which I have established.

I have now completed the recruitment process for the Panel and the first meeting will 
be taking place on Wednesday, 11 July.   Those appointed to the Panel are:

! Mr Ceri Stradling (who has also been appointed as the Chair of the Audit & 
Risk Committee) – former Senior Partner with the Wales Audit Office.

! Mrs Jan Williams – former Chief Executive, Cardiff & Vale University Health 
Board.

! Mr John Williams – former Director of Social Services, Conwy County 
Borough Council.

! Mr Bill Richardson – who will join the Panel in September when he retires 
from his current role as Deputy Chief Executive at the office of the 
Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman.

Eitem 8a

Tudalen 47



2 

 

I took the decision to form the Panel having undertaken a review of governance 
arrangements of other ombudsmen schemes, where similar arrangements are in 
place in some cases. I saw that there were real benefits to be obtained from having 
an external perspective in the development of strategy and practice.  The role of the 
Advisory Panel is provide me with support, advice and challenge in providing 
leadership and good governance of my office of the PSOW.  

I feel very fortunate that I was able to appoint such high calibre, well respected
people to the Panel and I look forward to working with them in the future. Their 
combined breadth of experience across the public sector and of other ombudsmen 
schemes will enable them to support me in the further development of the services 
that I am able to offer.

Oversight of financial controls and risk management of the office remains with the 
Audit & Risk Committee.  The Committee assists me in my Accounting Officer
responsibilities by ensuring that the assurance I receive is comprehensive and
reliable and that the public money for which I am accountable is utilised in an 
effective and compliant manner.

Finally, should the Committee find it useful, I would welcome further opportunities to 
present evidence to its meetings in the future.

Yours sincerely

Peter Tyndall
Ombudsman

Tudalen 48


	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru ar yr amgylchedd hanesyddol - sesiwn dystiolaeth
	3 Ymchwiliad i bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru ar yr amgylchedd hanesyddol - sesiwn dystiolaeth (cynhadledd fideo)
	4 Ymchwiliad i bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru ar yr amgylchedd hanesyddol - sesiwn dystiolaeth
	6 Ystyried y materion allweddol - Ymchwiliad i Uwch Gynghrair Pêl-droed Cymru
	7 Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor - Cytuno ar gylch gorchwyl ymchwiliad
	8a CELG(4)-19-12 - Papur 5 - Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru

